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Vision and Values

Our vision is to be the preferred producer of top
quality fresh and processed vegetables globally. We
are committed fo adopfting international standards
of management throughout our business and aim to
pursue excellence in everything that we do.
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Corporate Profile

Operating since 1971, China Minzhong Food Corporation Limited (*China Minzhong”)
is one of the few companies in the People’s Republic of China ("PRC") that possesses
both processing capabilities as well as its own cultivation bases. Headquartered in Putian
City, Fujian Province, PRC, China Minzhong has a diversified and complementary product
portfolio and is recognised for its product quality and reliability. China Minzhong's portfolio
comprises two key business segments, namely Cultivation and Processing.

Through its decades of experience, China Minzhong has
developed an infegrated demand-driven operatfion with
wide-ranging cultivation and processing capabilities.
China Minzhong manages and plans its culfivation and
processing schedules based on advanced sales orders
received from its customers.This demand-driven cultivation
and production approach not only allows China Minzhong
fo meet its customers’ requirements and market demand,
it also enables the Group fo achieve high productive
efficiency by ensuring a stable supply of products and
establishing better control over costs. This demand-driven
infegrated business model differentiates China Minzhong
from its peers and has helped the Group develop long-
term relationships with many of its key customers.

China Minzhong's global customer base currently spans
over 26 countries across four continents. The Group's
strategically located and geographically diversified
cultivation bases in seven provinces in the PRC, as well
as its network of suppliers of fresh and semi-processed
vegetables in 14 provinces throughout the country,
enables the Group to employ a seasonally complementary
approach fo cultivation and leverage on favourable
climatic conditions fo secure fresh vegetables produce for
its processing needs throughout the year. China Minzhong
has an extensive processing platform that encompasses

processing methods such as air-drying, freeze-drying, fresh-
packing and brining, which allows the Group to offer more
than 100 types of processed vegetables fo its customers.

China Minzhong has received numerous infernational
and domestic awards as well as certifications for its quality
management system and food safety standards. In 2013,
China Minzhong is on Forbes Asia’s 200 Best Under a Billion
List. China Minzhong has also been named a “National
Leading Dragon Head Enterprise” by the PRC Government
since December 2002 in recognition of its status as a
leading agricultural enterprise.

The Group is well poised for further growth and success
under the helm of a group of experienced industry veterans
with over 28 years of experience in their respective fields. In
particular, our Executive Chairman and CEO Mr Lin Guo
Rong, Chief Operations Officer Mr Wang Da Zhang and
Chief Technology Officer Mr Huang Bing Hui have been
working together for more than 38 years in our Group and its
predecessors and have vast experience in the vegetables
cultivation and processing industry.

In 2013, PT Indofood Sukses Makmur Tbk became a majority
shareholder of China Minzhong, laying the foundations
for strategic business collaborations between the two
companies.
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Geographically Diversified
Operations

Our culfivation and processing operations are
geographically diversified across eight provinces.
Our network of suppliers spread across 14
provinces in PRC.

Tibet

Owned open-field Farming Bases

Owned Processing Facilities
Other Suppliers
Industrialised Farming Bases [in operations]

Contract Farming

Industrialised Farming Bases [under construction ("U/C")]
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Milestones

*Established and begun operatfions in
vegetables processing and export.

1971
1985
1999

*Nationalised as a State-Owned Enterprise
("SOE") in PRC.

*Infroduced freeze-drying, fresh-packing,
brining and IQF fo the Group’s vegetables
processing methods fo meet customers’
needs and widen product range.

*Awarded the National Leading Dragon
Head Enferprise award (M bERE &
T3\ by the Ministry of Agriculture and
other government authorities.

2002

*Management buyout of Fujian Minzhong
Organic Food Co., Ltd. under a government
scheme fo privatise certain non-core state-
owned assets. The Company also raised
additional capital of $$9 milion from
investors by means of a convertible loan to
fund its expansion and became a wholly
owned foreign enterprise.

2004

*Expanded organic  farming  business
through acquisition of a second organic
base in Putian City.

+Set up new processing facility in Yunnan.
+Awarded ISO 9001:2000 Quality
Management System Certificate, HACCP-
EC-01 (ISODIS22000)  Certificate  of
Food Safety Management System and
GB/T:28000 Occupational Health & Safety
Management Certificate.

2005

«Further diversified geographical presence in
China through establishment of cultivation
bases in Shanghai, Sichuan and Inner
Mongolia.

*HFIL (wholly owned private equity fund
managed by CMIA Capital Partners Pte.
Ltd.) and Olympus Leaf (wholly owned
private equity fund managed by Olympus
Capital Holdings Asia) as well as Tetrad
Ventures (wholly owned by Government
of Singapore Investment Corporatfion
(Ventures) Pte. Ltd.) became shareholders
of the Company and also subscribed for
redeemable convertible bonds issued by
the Company with an aggregate principal
amount of US$23 million for the purpose of
funding the Company’s expansion within
the PRC.

2006

2008

2009

2010

2010

2011

2012

2013

+Set up new culfivation base in Hubei.

*Awarded the ISO14000: Environment
Management System Certificate. (FREEIE
RAINEED).

+Additional funding from OCBC Capital
through a convertible loan of US$9 million.

*Awarded Organic Certification by BCS
Oko-Garantie GmbH for bamboo shoots,
cauliffowers, tomatoes, shiitake mushrooms,
green onions, spring onions, garlic, celery,
cabbage and broccoli. Produced in
accordance with standards adopted by the
European Union.

*April - Successfully listed on the Singapore
Exchange Mainboard.

POST-LISTING

«July - Establishment of Tianjin Minzhong
for the expansion of king oyster mushroom
business.

*August - Started cultivation of black fungus
in Sichuan Province.

+April - New cultivation base set up in Jiangxi.
Achieved doubling of vegetable farmland
area since IPO.
*May - Tianjin Minzhong started 1st harvest
of king oyster mushrooms.
-December - Official opening of Phase 1
of New Industrial Park processing facilities
located in Putian City, Fujian Province.

*May - Tianjin Minzhong achieves capacity
of 20 tons per day of king oyster mushrooms,
ahead of schedule.

«September - Successful certfification by U.S.
Food and Drug Administration ("FDA").

*February - Indonesia’s PT Indofood Sukses

Makmur Tbk (“Indofood”) acquired 29.3%
of shareholdings fo become single largest
shareholder.

*May - Achieved success in the industrialised
farming of champignon mushrooms.

*August - Named as one of the companies
under Forbes Asia’s 200 Best under a Billion
List.

*Indofood raised its stake in China Minzhong
fo 64.2% (as at 3 October 2013) following
announcement of general offer on 2
September 2013.

I —.
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Letter to Shareholders

“The year in review marked
numerous significant corporate
milestones for China Minzhong.
While some represent the fruits

of our labour over the years,
others have opened up new
opportunities for China Minzhong
and its stakeholders’

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors and Management, | am
delighted to present to you another record year of financial
performance for the 12 months ended 30 June 2013
("FY2013"). China Minzhong recorded an 11.1% increase
in net profit fo RMB755.1 million in FY2013, underpinned by
a 26.4% growth in revenue to RMB3.2 billion.This is also our
4th consecutive year of record revenue and profit since our
listing in 2010.

This record performance was achieved despite a
challenging year for the Group, characterised by rising
costs in PRC and macroeconomic uncertainties in Europe.
More recently, China Minzhong was aftacked by a
short seller - Glaucus Research Group California, LLC
("Glaucus”) had on 26 August 2013 and 2 September
2013 published reports (“Reports”) regarding certain
affairs of the Group. Their initial report on 26 August 2013
had caused a substantial decrease in the share price of
the China Minzhong. Glaucus had openly stated that they
were short sellers and their intention was to profit from the
decline of the China Minzhong's stock price.

Your Board and management had, on 1 and 3 September
2013, refuted the allegations by Glaucus and believe
that the opinions and inferences drawn by Glaucus were
reckless and done without due regard to the accuracy of
such statements.

The mandatory general offer made by our largest
shareholder, PT Indofood Sukses Makmur Tok (“Indofood”),
to acquire all outstanding shares at S$1.12 per share on 2

September 2013 is an indication of Indofood’s support and
confidence in the Company.

Year in Review

The year in review marked numerous significant corporate
milestones for China Minzhong. While some represent the
fruits of our labour over the years, others have opened
up new opportunities for China Minzhong and our
stakeholders.

In our previous annual report, we had discussed the
rafionale and plans to increase our focus on industrialised
farming. Besides offering a climate-controlled environment
for the cultivation of vegetables all year round, industrialised
farming offers an effective solution fo cost and production
efficiency in the wake of rising wages, land rental and
other cost components across PRC. In FY2013, the Group's
industrialised farming capacity (of king oyster mushrooms)
increased from 28 tons per day to 38 tons per day.This year,
we have also identified two new industrialised farming
sifes in Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province and Suining City,
Sichuan Province fo spearhead future growth in the Group's
industrialised farming segment.

This year, we have also achieved success in the cultivation
of champignon mushrooms - our key crop by revenue,
using industrialised farming methodology. Prior fo this, the
Group had outsourced much of its champignon mushroom
culfivafion fo confract farmers. Going forward, the
increased in-house culfivation of champignon mushrooms
via industrialised farming will bring about greater raw
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material self-sufficiency for the Group’s processing needs,
thereby reducing working capital requirements on the
back of reduced outsourcing. Our in-house culfivation
supply of champignon mushrooms will be channelled fo
fulfil processed orders during the wintfer culfivation season
and sold fresh to the local markets during the hot summer
season fo capitalise on the higher selling prices.

On the processing front, we are also pleased to announce
the completion of Phase 2 of our New Industrial Park in
Putian City, Fujian Province. The New Industrial Park is built
on approximately 287 mu of land, and comprises, amongst
others, new production facilities (such as airdrying and
freeze-drying equipment), warehouses, staff quarters and
sterilisation and filtration facilities. The new facilities and
additional capacity will provide an engine of future growth
for the Group’s processed business and also bear testimony
fo the Group's established and comprehensive processing
capabilities.

Outlook

The Board of Directors remains positive on the long ferm
prospects for vegetable demand in PRC and worldwide.
This optfimism stems from the rising urbanization in
PRC as well as global preferences for healthy dietary
eating habits. Riding on the wave of rising affluence
in PRC, we continue our shift towards higher value
products, such as edible fungi. On the overseas front,
we are also benefiting from the increasing trend of food
manufacturers seeking cost competitive and consistent
supply of raw materials for their production.

On the domestic front, labour costs are expected fo
continue rising and have an impact on our operating
costs. In view of this, we will contfinue to expand our
industrialised farming footprint to reduce our reliance
on labour. Building on our success in the industrialised
farming of champignon mushrooms, we are targeting
fo increase our culfivation capacity of champignon
mushrooms in Tianjin, Jiangsu, and Sichuan. Meanwhile,
we will also be on the lookout for new suitable
industrialised farming sites in other major cities in PRC
and experiment the industrialised farming of other high
value crops at the same time.

Investment by Indofood

Indofood became China Minzhong's single largest
shareholder when it acquired a 29.3% stake in February
2013. We view Indofood as a strategic shareholder offering
new business opportunities to the Group. So far, many
opportunities for strategic infegration and synergies in
the fast growing markets of Indonesia and PRC have
been identified. These include leveraging on Indofood’s
knowledge, expertise and network to further China
Minzhong's growth.

On 2 September 2013, PT Indofood launched a mandatory
cash offer for the remaining shares of China Minzhong
which it did not own, at a price of $$1.12 per share (the
"Offer”).The Offer turned unconditional in all respects on 3
September 2013 in view of Indofood having acquired more
than 50% of China Minzhong shares. In the Offer document
dated 20 September 2013 from Indofood to China
Minzhong's shareholders, Indofood nofed the Group’s
business to be strategically complementary to its business
and various opportunities exist for strategic infegration
and synergies, including cross-selling of existing products
and supply chain integration and knowledge tfransfer to
enhance the Group’s position and mutual value creation.
As at the close of frading on 3 Oct 2013, Indofood has
acquired 64.20% of the fotal issued shares in China
Minzhong.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to take
this opportunity o extend my deepest appreciation to
Indofood for its unwavering support and all our other
valued shareholders for their confidence in us. To reward
our shareholders for the fruits of our labor, we are proposing
our Tst dividend distribution of $$0.01 per ordinary share.
I would also like to extend my heartfelt appreciation to
my fellow Directors on the Board, our management tfeam
and staff for their dedicated commitment and unwavering
support, especially whilst we had to vigorously defend
China Minzhong. In addition, we would also like to thank
our customers, suppliers, business associates and other
stakeholders in continuing to embrace our vision fo be
the preferred producer of top quality fresh and vegetables
globally.

Lin Guo Rong

Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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Board of Directors

LIN GUO RONG

LEE EDAN KIETCHAI

WANG ANSON

LIMYEOW HUA

LIN GUO RONG

Executive Chairman and CEO

Lin Guo Rong, Executive Chairman
and CEO, is responsible for the
overall management and business
strategies development of the Group.
Mr Lin has been with the Group and
its predecessors for more than 38
years and has vast management
and operational experience in the
vegetables  processing  business.
Mr Lin's visionary leadership and
entrepreneurial success have been
recognised with numerous awards,
including "Top Hundred Entrepreneurs”
by the China Media Development
Institute  and other development
institutes; " TopTen Individuals of the PRC
Vegetables Produce Industry” by the
PRC Vegetables Industry Professional
Committee; “Fujian Province Model
Labour” (&2 & % aiESE) by the Fujian
Province People’s Government; and
“Putian City Outstanding Entrepreneur”
by the Putian Municipal People’s
Government. Mr Lin has been the vice-
chairman of the Fujian Agricultural
Industry Dragon Head Enterprise
Association since 2003 and has been

HENG HANG SIONG

appointed a People’'s Representative
of Pufian People’s Congress since
1987. He was also recognised as
a senior economist by the Fujian
Province Human Resource Agency in
1997.

LEE EDAN KIETCHAI
Non-Executive Direcfor

Lee Edan Kietchai, Non-Executive

Director, is a Managing Director
of  Olympus  Capital Holdings
Asia, a private equity investment
management  firm  focused on

the middle market in Asia. Mr Lee
joined Olympus Capital in 1998 and
currently serves as its head of China.
He has also held roles in strategy
management consulting with
McKinsey & Co in the US and Australia
and in business development and
project management with AES China
Generating Co.,Ltd in mainland China.
Mr Lee graduated with a Bachelor
of Arts and a Bachelor of Science
degree from Rice University and has
a Masters of Business Administration
from the Stanford Graduate School of
Business.

LIM GEE KIAT

WANG ANSON

Non-Execuftive Directfor

Wang Anson, Non-Executive Director,
is the Co-Founder and Managing
Partner of CMIA Capital Partners Pte.
Ltd. ("CMIA"), a private equity firm
focused on middle market, growth
capital investment opportunities in
China. Mr Wang has over 27 years
of experience in private-equity and
venture capital, fund management,
corporate  banking and finance.
Prior to founding CMIA, Mr Wang
was Regional Managing Director of
HSBC Asset Management and was
responsible for HSBC's institutional
fund management business. Mr Wang
was also the founding Chief Executive
Officer at State Street Global Advisors
(Asia), the fund management arm of
the State Street Bank Corporation.

LIM YEOW HUA

Independent Director

Lim Yeow Hua, Independent Director,
is currently managing Asia Pacific
Business Consultants Pte Ltd, a fax
and business consulfancy which he
founded in 2006. In Mr Lim’'s more
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than 26 years of experience in the
tax, financial services and investment
banking industries, he has worked
for Ermnst & Whinney (now known
as Emnst & Young LLP), the Inland
Revenue Authority of Singapore,
Pricewaterhouse (now known as
PricewaterhouseCoopers), KPMG,
Macquarie Investment Pte Ltd, UOB
Asia Limited and BP. Mr Lim holds a
Bachelor's degree in Accountancy
and Master's Degree in Business
Administration  from the National
University of Singapore. He is a Fellow
of the Institute of Certified Public
Accounts of Singapore (ICPAS) and a
Full Member of the Singapore Institute
of Direcftors.

HENG HANG SIONG

Independent Director

Heng Hang Siong. Independent
Director, currently a management
consultant. Mr Heng was the Chief
Financial Officer of Eu Yon Sang
Intfernational Ltd and was responsible
forthefinance,investments,information
fechnology and corporate secretarial

PROFILES OF PROPOSED DIRECTORS

Siek Wei Ting

Execufive Director

Mr Siek Wei Ting is currently the Chief
Financial Officer of China Minzhong.
Please refer o page 8 of this Annual
Report for Mr Siek's profile.

Hendra Widjaja

Non-Executive Director

Hendra Widjaja has been the Head
of Corporate Controller Division of PT
Indofood Sukses Makmur Tbk. ("PT
Indofood”) since 2012.He concurrently
serves as Director of PT Indofood CBP
Sukses Makmur Tok., Director of PT
Indolakto, and as Commissioner of PT
Salim lvomas Pratama Tok.. Mr Widjaja
is also Commissioner of PT PP London
Sumatera Tbk., since 2007 and a
Director of Ocean 21 Pte Ltd.

Mr  Widjaja has previously held
management positions in  several
operating business units of PT Indofood
and served as Director and Chief
Financial Officer of PT Indomarco Adi
Prima between 2001 and 2002. From
2002 to 2012, Mr Widjaja served as the
Deputy Division Head of the Corporate
Controller Division of PT Indofood.

functions of the Eu Yan Sang Group.
Mr Heng has exfensive financial
and operational experience in the
banking, manufacturing and frading
environment with several multinational
and SGX listed companies. Mr
Heng graduated with a Bachelor
of Business Administration (Finance
and Investment Management) from
the City University of New York and
a Master of Science (Accounting
and Information Management) from
Pace University, New York. Mr Heng
is a fellow member and a Certified
Public Accountant with the Institute
of Certified Public Accountants of
Singapore and the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and
is also a member of the Institute of
Management Accountants, Institute of
Certified Internal Auditors, a member
of Singapore Institute of Directors and
council member of the Singapore-
Guangdong Collaboration Council.
MrHeng is the winner of the prestigious
Best CFO of the Year 2010 Award of the
Singapore Corporate Awards.

Mr Widjaja holds a Bachelor's degree
in Management and Finance from
the Catholic University of Atma Jaya in
Jakarta, Indonesia.

Kasim Rusmin

Alternate Director to Mr Hendra Widjaja

Mr Kasim Rusmin has been the Head
of Corporate Treasury Division of PT
Indofood since 2012. He is also a
Director of PT Asahi Indofood Beverage
Makmur and Commisioner of PT
Indofood Asahi Sukses Beverage.

Prior fo joining PT Indofood, Mr Kasim
wass a director and Head of Corporate
Finance of PT DBS Vickers Securities
Indonesia from 2005 until 2009 and he
wass a director and Head of Corporate
Finance of PT ING Securities Indonesia
until 2004.

Mr Kasim holds a Master's degree
in Business Administration from the
University of Porfland in Oregon, United
State of America and a Bachelor's
degree in Finance from the Oregon
State University in Oregon, United State
of America.

LIM GEE KIAT

Independent Director

Lim Gee Kiat, Independent Director,
is currently the Chief Financial Officer
of Nera Telecommunications Ltd. Mr
Lim was previously a Vice President af
GIC Special Investments Pte Ltd, the
private equity investment arm of the
Government of Singapore Investment
CorporationPte Ltd.InMrLim’s extensive
work experience spanning more than
fen years, he has worked for various
companies, including DBS Vickers
Securities, Fortune Venture Investment
Group and SembCorp Industries. Mr
Lim graduated with a Bachelor of
Engineering (First Class Honours) in
Electrical & Electronics from Nanyang
Technological University and has a
Masters of Business Administration
from Nanyang Business School. Mr
Lim is a Certified Public Accountant
with the Institute of Cerfified Public
Accountants of Singapore.

Goh Kian Chee

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr Goh Kian Chee is presently a
Consultant in the National University of
Singapore, Centre for the Arts. He is an
Independent Director of IndoFood Agri
Resources Ltd and AsiaMedic Limited.

Mr Goh started his career in 1979
as an audit frainee with Goldblatt
& Co (UK). He joined American
Infernational Assurance Pte Ltd in
1981 as an Accounting Supervisor. In
1982, he became a Regional Internal
Auditor in Mobil Oil Singapore Pte Ltd
and rose tfo the position of Regional
Credit and Insurance Manager in
1987. In 1990, he was tfransferred fo
Mobil Petrochemicals International
Ltd where he served as Regional
Accounting Manager and later, as the
Controller of the Asia Pacific region.
Before his present role at the National
University of Singapore, Mr Goh was the
Regional Vice President & Controller as
well as an Executive Director of John
Hancock International Pte Ltd.

Mr Goh has a Bachelor of Arts (Hons)
degree in Accounting and Economics
from Middlesex University in the United
Kingdom.
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Key Management

WANG DAZHANG
Chief Operations Officer

Wang Dazhang, Chief Operations Officer, is responsible

for the day-fo-day operations of the Group. Mr Wang
has been with the Group and its predecessors for more
than 38 years and has vast experience in the vegetables
processing industry. Mr Wang was appointed as a People’s
Representative of Putian City Chengxiang District People’s
Congress from 1992 to 1997 and was awarded “Putian City
Model Labour” (A% #1##5E) by the Putian City People’s
Government in 2001.

HUANG BING HUI
Chief Technology Officer

Huang Bing Hui, Chief Technology Officer, is responsible
for all technical issues of the Group. He has been with the
Group and its predecessors for more than 38 years with
vast experience in the fechnical aspects of vegetable
processing.

He started out as a general worker and rose to become the
head of the technical department. Mr Huang completed
his high school education in the PRC.

SIEK WEITING
Chief Financial Officer

Siek Wei Ting, Chief Financial Officer, joined the Group
in 2004 and is responsible for the overall financial and
accounting functions of the Group. Mr Siek has over ten
years of professional experience in audit and corporate
management. He was an audit supervisor at Deloitte &
Touche and Ernst & Young, as well as Senior Vice President
at Southern Bank Berhad, a leading Malaysian Bank listed
on the Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange, where he was
responsible for commercial and retail banking operations.
Mr Siek was previously also Chief Executive Officer of EBBIS
Pte Ltd. Mr Siek graduated from the Nanyang Technological
University of Singapore with a degree in accounting and
was awarded the Nanyang Outstanding Young Alumni
Award Recipient (2008) by the University for his oufstanding
career achievements.He is also currently the Vice-Chairman
of the Putian South Shaolin Temple Pugilistic Association.

PROFESSOR LIN MEI XI
Head of Processing Technology Team

Professor Lin Mei Xi, Head of Processing Technology Team, is
responsible for the research and development activities in
the Group. Prior fo joining the Group, Professor Lin was the
deputy general manager of Pution Food Product Factory,
as well as the senior engineer, processing fechnology
manager, and general manager of Fujian Yajun Food
Product Industry Co., Ltd. Professor Lin has been a certified
senior engineer for more than 20 years and has extensive

experience in food processing research. Professor Lin was
appointed as and is currently a visiting professor with the
College of Food Sciences of Fujian Agriculture and Forestry
University and the College of Biological Science and
Technology of Fuzhou University. Professor Lin graduated
from Fuzhou University with a degree in Food Product
Engineering in 1982.

CHEN JIAN FANG
Head of Culfivation Bases

Chen Jian Fang, Head of Bases and Contract Bases, is

responsible for the overall supervision and operations
of the Group’s Bases and Contract Bases. Mr Chen was
certified as an Internal Inspector for China GAP by Sai Fu De
(Xiamen) Food Technology Co., Ltd.. Mr Chen graduated
from Fujian Agriculture and Forestry University with a degree
in Agriculture Conservation.

ZHENG LI XIA
Head of Quality Assurance Department

Zheng Li Xia, Head of Quality Assurance Department,
is responsible for leading the Group in HACCP ISO9001,
ISO14001 and OHSAS18001 compliance training activities.
Ms Zheng is frained in ISO9001 Quality Systfem Management
Standards, 1SO14001 and OHSAS18001 and is certified
by the China Certification & Inspection Group (Quality
Certification Co., Ltd) as a qualified Quality Infernal Auditor,
State Registered Internal Inspector for both Environment
Management System (1ISO14001), as well as Occupational
Health & Safety Management (OHSAS18001) and Infernal
Inspector for Quality Management System (ISO900T1).
Ms Zheng was also certified as an Internal Inspector
for ChinaGAP by Sai Fu De (Xiaomen) Food Technology
Co., Ltd and an Internal Inspector for Onsite Production
Management,

Quality Inspection and 5S Management by CQCC. Ms
Zheng graduated from Fujian Province Xianyou County
Education with a high school education and obtained
a certfificate in Food Inspection (Infermediate level) from
Fujion

Province Putian City Occupational Skill Examination and
Guidance Center.

YU @lU RONG
Head of Sales and Marketing Department

Yu Qiu Rong,Head of Sales and Marketing Department,
is responsible for all sales and marketing activities in the
Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Yu was the supervisor
of Fujian Shuang Feng Xue Ye Co., Ltd, as well as the
supervisor of Fujian Hua Lun Ying Dyeing Factory in Putian.
Mr Yu has a Bachelor of Business degree from Dong Bei
Business University.
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Financial Highlights

Income Statement Highlights

12 months ended 30 June

(RMB’million) FY2013 FY2012 % Change
Revenue 3,247.8 2,568.8 26.4%
Processed business® 2,086.2 1,684.3 31.7%
Cultivation business® 1.161.6 984.5 18.0%
Gross Profit 1,115.7 985.9 13.2%
Processed business® 501.4 469.1 26.1%
Cultivation business® 524.3 516.8 1.5%
Gross Margins 34.4% 38.4% (4.0ppt)
Processed business® 28.3% 29.6% (1.3ppth)
Cultivation business® 45.1% 52.5% (7 .4ppt)
Profit Before Income Tax 801.9 726.2 10.4%
Net Income 755.1 679.6 11.1%
Net income margin 23.2% 26.5% (3.3ppt)
EBITDA 1.110.4 962.2 15.4%
EBITDA margin 34.2% 37.5% (3.3ppt)
Basic earnings per share (RMB) 1.28® 1.22® 4.9%
Diluted earnings per share (RMB) 1.28® 1.22® 4.9%

Footnote:

(1) Processed business segment comprises of processed vegetables, IQF processed products, vegetable and fruit beverages and other miscellaneous

products.

(2) Cultivation business segment comprises of fresh vegetables produce and mushroom spores.

(3) Based on weighted average number of shares of 590,106,000.
(4) Based on weighted average number of shares of 557,439,000.
(5) Based on weighted average number of shares of 590,580,000.

Balance Sheet Highlights

(RMB’million) As at 30 June 2013 As at 30 June 2012 % Change
Total Assets 5,834.9 4,587.5 27.2%
Non-current assets 2,980.7 2,928.3 1.8%
Current assets 2,854.2 1,659.2 72.0%
Total Liabilities 1.064.9 1.000.2 6.5%
Non-current liabilities 24.4 28.6 (14.7%)
Current liabilities 1,040.5 971.6 7.1%
Shareholders’ equity 4,770.0 3,587.3 33.0%

Net Assets Value per share (RMB) 7.28 6.44 13.0%

Cash Flow Highlights

FY2013

For full year ended 30 June

FY2012

Net cash from operating activities 896.4 359.1 149.6%
Net cash generated used in investing activities (537.0) (733.1) (26.7%)
Net cash generated from financing activities 390.5 255.4 52.9%
Cash and bank balances 826.4 66.2 1148.3%

as stated in the balance sheet
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Financial and Operations Review

Overview

For the full year ended 30 June 2013, China Minzhong recorded a 11.1% growth in its net profit from RMB679.6 million to
RMB755.1 million, on the back of a 26.4% increase in its revenue to RMB3.2 billion.This is the Group's 4th consecutive year

of record profit since its listing in 2010.

Income Statement
Revenue contribution by Segment

FY2013 FY2012

RMB’ million RMB’ million % Change
Processed Business Segment:
- Processed vegetables 1,804.2 1,451.8 24.3%
- Beverages 196.0 51.5 280.6%
- Others® 86.0 81.0 6.2%
Subtoftal 2,086.2 1,684.3 31.7%
Cultivation Business Segment:
- Fresh vegetables produce 1,.071.0 870.1 23.1%
- Mushroom spores® %0.6 114.4 (20.8%)
Subtotall 1.161.6 984.5 18.0%
Total revenue 3.247.8 2,568.8 26.4%

Note:

@ include IQF processed products and other miscellaneous products (such as instant food and health food products)

@ Sales of mushroom spores

Segmental Revenue by Proportion

2.8%
|

B Processed vegetables B Beverages

[ Fresh vegetables

China Minzhong recorded broad-based revenue growth
acrossbothits Processed and Cultivation Business Segments.
The Processed Business Segment (comprising of processed
vegetables, beverages and other processed products)
confinued tfo ride on the steady worldwide demand
for processed vegetables products as well as greater

4.5%

B Mushroom spores

B Other processed products

brand awareness of its beverage products domestically.
The Cultivation Business Segment (comprising of fresh
vegetables produce and mushroom spores) benefited
from an increase in domestic demand for vegetables,
underpinned by rising urbanisation and preferences for
healthy dietary habits.
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Revenue from the Processed Business Segment grew
31.7% to RMB2.1 billion, accounting for 64.2% of Group’s
total sales in FY2013 (FY2012: 61.7%). Revenue from
processed vegetables increased 24.3% to RMB1.8 billion,
attributable to higher sales for air-dried and fresh-packed
products from both existing and new customers in the
export markets. On the domestic front, revenue from
beverages products jumped 280.6% to RMB196.0 million,
on the back of an increase in sales volume arising from
growing consumer demand in the PRC market. Sales
from other processed products increased moderately by
6.3% compared fo the previous financial year.

Revenue from the Cultivation Business Segment increased
18.0% to RMB1.2 billion,accounting for 35.8% of Group's total

Champignon Mushrooms

Black Fungus

King Oyster Mushrooms

Capsicums

Chives

sales in FY2013 (FY2012: 38.3%).The improved performance
is mainly driven by a 23.1% growth in revenue from fresh
vegetables produce, due to an increase in culfivation
volume from new productive farmland.

The Group’s portfolio of vegetables remains dynamic,
capifalising on the lafest trends and consumer’s
preferences. This also bears testimony of the Group’s
capabilities in  cultivating and processing different
vegetable species. In FY2013, champignon mushrooms
confinued to be the Group’s key crop by revenue, while its
percentage contribution of revenue slipped from 25.3% to
19.7% on the back of other faster growing vegetable types.

19.7% 25.3%
10.9% 11.7%
5.0% 4.7%
<5% <5%
<5% <5%

(*As a percentage of total revenue less sales of mushroom spores, bamboo related products and branded processed products)
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Financial and Operations Review

Gross profit rose 13.2% to RMB1.1 billion, while gross margin
slipped 4.0ppt to 34.4% due to overall higher raw material
costs and wages compared to the previous financial
year. The Cultivation Business Segment was also faced
with lower yield from new farmland, which typically takes
about 3 years to achieve optimum yield. On a positive
note, the beverages segment saw an improvement in gross
margin from 14.6% to 27.2%, underpinned by an increase
in sales volume resulting in the lowering of manufacturing
overheads on a unit basis.

The Group will seek to maximise margins through the
continued shift fowards higher value products, better
economies of scale on new farmland as well as more efficient
usage of resources (eg. recycling of mushroom cultivation
substrate as fertiliser) and increased mechanisation (for
instance, industrialised farming) to mitigate against rising
labour costs.

The Group recorded a loss on fair value of biological
assets amounting to RMB18.0 million in FY2013. This
pertains to the Group's bamboo forest, whose fair value is
based on a discounted cash flow (DCF) model over the
lease period of the forest. Assuming all other parameters
remaining constant, with each successive year, a loss on
fair value will be recorded due to natural progression over
the remaining lease period. Other income (comprising
mainly of government grants received as subsidies for
intferest expenses and capital expenditures as well as rental
income from leasing farmland fo third parties) recorded a
moderate increase of 1.6% to RMB49.4 million.

Selling & distribution expenses increased by 2.2% fo
RMB121.4 million, mainly due fo an increase in marketing

TE

and advertising expenses related to the promotion of our
brand-name domestically. Administrative expenses rose by
26.1% to RMB124.5 million, mainly due to (i) an increase
in payroll and professional expenses; (i) an increase
in depreciation expenses allocated for administrative
purposes; and (i) other faxes (such as properties and
land use rights faxes), atfributable fo the Group’s business
expansion.

Other expenses, comprising mainly the related costs of
leasing farmland to third parties, impairment allowances
for tfrade receivables and exchange losses, increased
9.1% to RMB51.4 million. Finance expenses rose 33.6% to
RMB47.9 million, due to an increase of average bank
borrowings during the financial year to fund the Group'’s
higher working capital requirements.

Profit before income tax increased 10.4% to RMB801.9
million, in tfandem with higher gross profit. Income tax
expenses remained relatively flat at RMB46.9 million in
FY2013, compared to RMB46.6 million in FY2012. Effective
fax rate was lower at 5.8% (FY2012: 6.4%) due to a higher
proportion of our fresh-packed vegetables sales (currently
under processed sales business classification) being tox-
exempted in the same way as fresh vegetables produce
sales.

Overall, the Group reported a 11.1% growth in net profit fo
RMB755.1 million, with a net margin of 23.2%. Basic earnings
per share rose 4.9% from RMB1.22 in FY2012 fo RMB1.28
in FY2013. Earnings before inferest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation ("EBITDA") increased 15.4% to RMB1.1 billion.
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Balance sheet

Total assets increased 27.2% from RMB4.6 billion as at 30
June 2012 to RMBS5.8 billion as at 30 June 2013. Non-current
assets rose 1.8% to RMB3.0 billion, mainly driven by a 12.9%
increase in property, plant and equipment (PPE) fo RMB2.1
billion and net of amortisation and depreciation on other
non-current assets, such as land use rights, operating lease
prepayments and land improvements costs. The increase
in PPE is mainly atftributed to the addition of new facilities
and machinery for Phase 2 of the Industrial Park as well
as ongoing construction of new industrialised farming
facilities in Jiangsu and Tianjin.

Current assets rose by 72.0% to RMB2.9 billion. Cash and
cash balances increased from RMB66.2 million fo RMB826.4
million, on the back of higher profits, healthy collection of
receivables and gross proceeds of RMB454.8 million from
the issuance of new shares to the Group’s current major
shareholder, PT Indofood Sukses Makmur Tk (“Indofood”).
Meanwhile, tfrade receivables level also increased 13.5%
fo RMB1.1 billion, in line with 26.4% sales growth. Other
receivables and prepayments, comprising mainly of
advances fo suppliers for raw material purchases as well
as deposits paid for the construction of new industrialised
farming facilities, grew from RMB412.2 million to RMB694.0
million.

Key Financial Indicators

Total liabilities rose slightly by 6.5% to RMB1.1 billion. Non-
current liabilities, comprising of government grants, long
ferm bank loans and deferred tax liabilities, decreased by
RMB4.2 million to RMB24.4 million. This is largely attributed
to a reclassification of a long term bank loan as a current
liability, amortisation of government grants and recognition
of deferred tax liabilities. Current liabilities, comprising
mainly bank term loans, income liabilities and frade and
non-trade payables, increased by 7.1%, mainly due to an
increase in frade payables in tandem with revenue growth.

Cash Flow

The Group continued fo generate healthy net cash inflow
from operating activities in FY2013, with an increase of
149.6% to RMB896.4 million. This increase is underpinned
by the Group's higher profits and prompt receivables
collection. Net cash used in investing activities decreased
from RMB733.1 million in FY2012 to RMB537.0 million in
FY2013, as the Group scales back on its capital expenditure
plans in FY2013. Net cash from financing activifies rose
52.9% to RMB390.5 million, mainly driven by proceeds
from the issuance of new shares and an increase in bank
borrowings.

As at 30 June 2013, the Group recorded total cash and

bank balances amounting to RMB826.4 million, compared
to RMB66.2 million in the previous year.

For 12 months ended

30 Jun 2013 30 Jun 2012
Working Capital Days
Trade Receivable Turnover Days (9 116 85
Trade Payable Turnover Days (1®) (44) (35)
Inventory Turnover Days (') 21 26
Cash Conversion Days 93 76
Liquidity
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents (RMB 'mil) 826.4 66.2
Total Debt (RMB 'mil) 635.6 616.2
Net Gearing Ratio @ Net cash 0.15
Current Ratio ® 2.7 1.7
Shareholder Returns
ROE ® 15.8% 18.9%
Noftes:

(1a) Average trade receivables/ revenue x 365 days

(Tb) Average trade payables/ cost of goods sold x 365 days

(1c) Average inventory balance/ cost of goods sold for processed products x 365 days

(2) Net Gearing Ratio is calculated by dividing total debt less cash and cash equivalents over equity.
(3) Current Ratio is calculated by dividing current assets over current liabilities.

(4) ROE is calculated by dividing net profit for the 12-month period over equity.
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Expanding Industrialised
Farming Footprint

Increase in cultivation capacity
under industrialised farming

g 30
?L:)
g 20
3
5
2 4
= 8 8
=
30-Jun-10 30-Jun-11 30-Jun-12 30-Jun-13
(end FY10) (end FY11) (end FY12) (end FY13)
M Tianjin Capacity l shanghai Capacity
Upcoming developments for industrialised farming
Tianjin City 35 tons/day 2QFY14
(champignon mushrooms)
Jiangsu 25 tons/day 4QFY14
(champignon mushrooms)
Sichuan 130 tons/day 2QFY15

(champignon mushrooms)

Over the past one year, China Minzhong has further ramping up its capacity for the cultivation of champignon
expanded ifs industrialised farming capacity from 28 mushrooms, following successful trials in the industrialised
fons per day as at end FY2012 to 38 tons per day as at farming of champignon mushrooms earlier this year. In
end FY2013. While the current capacity is mainly for the  general, industrialised farming facilities can be used with
cultivation of king oyster mushrooms, the Group will also be  modifications to grow various types of edible fungi.

Industrialised farming of king oyster mushrooms Industrialised farming of champignon mushrooms
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Own Cultivation Area 56,405 mu
1 mu =666.67 sgm

Besides ifs industrialised farming bases, the Group also
currently manages open-field farmland in Fujian, Hubei,
Inner Mongolia, Sichuan and Jiangxi. As every plot of
farmland is unique, we generally take about 3 years to fine-
tfune cultivation parameters for each vegetable season fo
attain optimum yield. New productive farmland added in
the 1st year fetches around 60-70% of the optimum yield.
This will gradually increase to approximately 80-90% of the
optimum yield in the 2nd and 3rd year.

Overall Yield Per Mu

200 ~

160
14.0
120 -

100

*®
o
T

Yield per mu
o
o
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(RMB’000 per mu)
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end
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end
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end
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end
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Approximately 55% of
farmland sfill in maturing
phase

Despite accounting for approximately
0.5% of land area, industrialised
farming contributed 14% of fresh
vegetables sales (5% of fotal fresh and
processed vegetables sales) in FY13

0.5%

B Maturing farmland B Industrialised farming B Matured farmland

As at end FY2013, approximately 55% of the Group’s
farmland is sfill in the maturing phase. The industrialised
farming bases in Tianjin and Shanghai accounted for only
0.5% of total farmland but accounted for 14% of the Group’s
fresh vegetables sales (6% of fotal fresh and processed
vegetables sales) in FY2013, as a result of its high yield.

Comparing revenue yield per mu, conventional open-
field farming fetches an average of RMB15,000 per
mu per annum while industfrialised farming (of king
oyster mushrooms) fetches an average revenue yield of
RMBS505,000 per mu per annum. Note that this comparison
is based on different vegetable types.

600

505

Yield per mu
(RMB’000 per mu)

FY12 FY13

M Overall B Open-ield

(Conventional vegetables)

B Industrialised farming
(King oyster mushrooms)
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Minzhong's farmers with a bountiful
harvest

Making a difference to the
farmers

For many years, the Group has been
bringing about positive changes to
the farmers and their families in PRC.
The quality of life in these farming
communities was raised through
higher incomes, increased production
efficiency and general improvements
in the state of rural infrastructure.

Farmers managed under the Group's
cultivation bases stand to benefit from
leasing their farmland (or farming
rights) to the Group.They also receive
wages in return for their labour. In
fimes of good harvests, the Group
also made voluntary contributions
to infrastructure improvements in the
villages, such as road widening and
renovation of the villages’ schools.

The Group's also enters info
agreements with third party farmers
to grow vegetables on a seasonal
basis for a small portion of our supply
needs, based on pre-determined
prices. Through such contracts,
farmers benefit from the eliminatfion
of all market and pricing risks and
are assured of a ready buyer for their
crops after harvest.

Minzhong Class photo

Educating the next
generation

The Group recognises the importance
of education in the development and
progress of any society. This has been
the motivation behind the "Minzhong
Class” scholarship, which has been
helping financially disadvantaged
students realise their full potential.

Currently, the scheme is benefiting
close to 300 eligible needy students
across three academic levels in the
fop two high schools in Pufian City.
Besides sponsorship on school fees
and accommodation, each student
receives RMB2,500 of allowance
per annum. During school holidays,
students are also encouraged to
participate in  infernship  programs
with the Company fo pick up relevant
skill sets. Priorities will also be given
fo these students should they wish to
seek employment with the Company
after their graduation. This will also
ensure that the Company has access
fo a ready pool of talents.

Besides the award of bursaries and
scholarships, the Company is also
involved in other education projects,
such as donations for the construction
of a schools tfeaching block in
Yuanmou County, Yunnan Province.

Artist

impression of kindergarten
campus (currently in  construction)
located in Yuanmou County, Yunnan
Province

Community and Social
Involvement

At Minzhong, we believe that a
successful enterprise should display
a level of social awareness and take
responsibility in its social and moral
obligations to contribute back to
its society. Since its inception, the
Minzhong Foundation has made
numerous contributions fo the society,
through charity events, relief donations
for natural disasters, funding support
for elderly activities and organisation
of cultural and community sports
activities.

This year, the Company also made
donations fo the SOS Children’s Village
in Putian City for the refurbishment of
its facilities to create a better living
and learning environment for orphans
and under-privileged children staying
in the village. The Company has also
confributed towards the construction
of a kindergarten campus in Yuanmou
County, Yunnan Province, as part of
the Company’s efforts to nurture the
future generation.
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CHINA MINZHONG FOOD CORPORATION LIMITED

Corporate Governance

China Minzhong Food Corporation Limited (the "Company”) was listed on the Mainboard of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited ("SGX-ST") on 15 April 2010.

The Company is committed to ensuring and maintaining a high standard of corporate governance within the Company
andits subsidiaries (the "Group”). Good corporate governance establishes and maintains a legal and ethical environment,
which helps to preserve and enhance the interests of all shareholders.

This report describes the corporate governance framework and practices of the Company with specific reference fo
the principles of the Singapore Code of Corporate Governance 2005 (the "Code”) which forms part of the confinuing
obligations of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited ("SGX-ST")’s listing rules. As part of the continuous effect
fo improve the risk governance framework, the Risk Management Committee was established in Sepfember 2012 to
oversee the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group'’s risk management framework and policies.

This Report should be read as a whole, instead of being read separately under the different principles of the Code.

(A) BOARD MATTERS

Board’s Conduct of its Affairs

Principle 1 : Every company should be headed by an effective Board to lead and control the company.The Board is
collectively responsible for the long-term success of the Company.The Board works with Management to achieve
this and the Management remains accountable to the Board.

Role of the Board of Directors (“Board”)

The Board assumes responsibility for stewardship of the Group and is primarily responsible for the protection and
enhancement of long-ferm value and returns for the shareholders. It supervises the management of the business and
affairs of the Group, provides corporate direction, monitors managerial performance and reviews financial results of the
Group. In addition, the Board is directly responsible for decision making in respect of the following matters:

Q. approve the business strategies including significant acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries or assets and liabilities;

b. approve the annual budgets, major funding proposals, significant capital expenditures and investment and
divestment proposals;

C. approve the release of the Group’s quarterly and full year’s financial results and inferested person fransactions;

d. oversee the processes for risk management, financial reporfing and compliance and evaluate the adequacy of
infernal controls, as may be recommended by the Audit Committee;

e. review the performance of Management, approve the nominees to the Board of Directors and appointment of key
executives, as may be recommended by the Nominating Committee;

f. review and endorse the framework of remuneration for the Board and key executives, as may be recommended by
the Remuneration Committee; and

g. corporate policies in keeping with good corporate governance and business practice.

The Board provides shareholders with a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s performance, position
and prospects on a quarterly basis.

To assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has established a number of Board committees which include an
Audit Committee ("AC"), a Nominating Committee (*"NC"), a Remuneration Committee ("RC") and a Risk Management
Committee ("RMC"), each of which functions within clearly defined terms of reference and operating procedures which
are reviewed on a regular basis.
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Board Meetings and Meetings of Board Commitiees

The Board meets on a quarterly basis and whenever necessary for the discharge of their duties. Dates of the Board
meetings are normally set by the directors well in advance. Meetings of the Board and Board Committees may be
conducted by way of felephone and video conferencing, if necessary. Decisions of the Board and Board Committees
may also be obtained through circular resolutions.

The number of meetings held by the Board and Board committees and affendance thereat during the financial year
ended 30 June 2013 are as follows:

Board AC RC NC RMC
DIRECTORS No. of No. of No. of No. of No. of
meetings | Altended | meetings | Altended | meetings | Altended | meetings | Attended | meetings | Attended

Lin Guo Rong 4 4 4 4* 2 2% 2 2% 2 2
Lim Gee Kiat 4 4 4 4 2 2* 2 2* 2 2
Lee Edan Kietchai 4 4 4 4 2 2* 2 2 2 2*
Wang Anson 4 4 4 3* 2 2 2 2% 2 2%
Heng Hang Siong 4 4 4 4 2 2 2 2 2 2
Lim Yeow Hua 4 4 4 4 2 2 2 2 2 2*

Note: *attendance by invitation.
Training

The Board will constantly examine its size and, with a view to determining the impact of its number upon effectiveness,
decide on what it considers an appropriate size for itself. The composition of the Board will be reviewed on an annual
basis by the NC to ensure that the Board has the appropriate mix of expertise and experience.

Mr Lim Yeow Hua, a Non-Executive and Independent Director, has prior experience as director of public listed companies
in Singapore and is familiar with the roles and responsibilities of a director of a public listed company in Singapore.

The other directors, namely, Mr Lim Gee Kiat, Mr Lee Edan Kietchai, Mr Wang Anson, Mr Heng Hang Siong and Mr Lin Guo
Rong (Executive Chairman) have many years of corporate experience and have been acting as our directors since the
Company’s listing on 15 April 2010, and are familiar with their duties and responsibilities as directors of a company listed
on the SGX-ST.

Our directors have always been updated by the Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and/or senior
management of the Company on the business activities of the Group and its strategic directions, as well as their duties
and responsibilities as directors. Directors also have the opportunity fo visit the Group’s operational facilities and meet
with the management to gain a betfter understanding of the Group’s business operations. The directors are also briefed
by professionals either during Board meetings or at separate meetings on regulatory changes which have an important
bearing on the Company and the directors’ obligations to the Company.

The Company welcomes Directors to seek explanations or clarifications from and/or convene informal discussions with
the Management on any aspect of the Group’s operations or business. Necessary arrangements will be made for the
informal discussions or explanations as and when required.
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Board Composition and Balance

Principle 2 : There should be a strong and independent element on the Board, which is able to exercise objective
judgement on corporate affairs independently, in particular, from Management. No individual or small group of
individuals should be allowed to dominate the Board’s decision making.

The Board consists of six (6) directors of whom three (3) are independent.The list of directors is as follows:

Executive Director(s)
Lin Guo Rong (Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Directors

Lee Edan Kietchai (Non-Executive and Non-Independent Director)
Wang Anson (Non-Executive and Non-Independent Director)
Lim Yeow Hua (Non-Executive and Lead Independent Director)
Heng Hang Siong (Non-Executive and Independent Director)

Lim Gee Kiat (Non-Executive and Independent Director)

The size and composition of the Board are reviewed from time to time by the NC to ensure that the size of the Board is
conducive to effective discussions and decision making and which is of the view that the current Board size of six (6)
directors of which three (3) are independent directors, is appropriate and effective, taking into account the nature and
scope of the Company’s operations.

The current Board comprises persons with diverse expertise and experience in accounting, business and management,
finance and risk management who as a group provide core competencies necessary to meet the Company’s
requirements. The directors’ objective judgement on corporate affairs and collective experience and knowledge are
invaluable o the Group and allows for the useful exchange of ideas and views.

Independence of directors

The NC reviews the independence of each director on an annual basis based on the Code’s definition of what constitutes
an independent director. The NC is of the view that the three (3) independent directors (who represent half of the Board)
are independent and that there is a strong and independent element on the Board which is able to exercise objective
judgment on corporate matters independently, in particular, from Management, and that no individual or small group of
individuals dominate the Board's decision-making process.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Principle 3 : There should be a clear division of responsibilities at the top of the company - the working of the Board
and the executive responsibility of the company’s business - which will ensure a balance of power and authority,
such that no one individual represents a considerable concentration of power.

Mr Lin Guo Rong, the founder of the Group, is the Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") of the Company.
He is responsible for the business direction, long term strategic planning and its overall management and operations of
the Group.

He is also responsible for, among others, the exercise of control over quantity, quality and timeliness of the flow of information
between the management of the Company and the Board. He, with the assistance of the Company Secretary, schedules
Board meetings, oversees the preparation of the agenda for Board meetings and assists in ensuring compliance with the
Group’s guidelines on corporate governance.
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Mr Lin together with the management comprising each subsidiary’s general managers and key senior managers, are
responsible for the day-tfo-day management of the Group.

Under the Code, companies may appoint an Independent Non-Executive Director to be the lead independent director
where the Chairman and CEO is the same person.Accordingly, Mr Lim Yeow Hua was appointed as the Lead Independent
Director on 30 June 2009.

Mr Lim Yeow Hua, being the Lead Independent Director of the Company, is available to Shareholders where they have

concerns, which contact through the normal channels of the Chairman and CEO has failed to resolve or for which such
contact is inappropriate.

Board Membership

Principle 4 : There should be a formal and transparent process for the appointment of new directors to the Board. As
a principle of good corporate governance, all directors should be required to submit themselves for re-nomination
and re-election at regular intervals.

Currently, the NC comprises of a majority of Non-Executive and Independent directors. It is chaired by Mr Heng Hang
Siong (a Non-Executive and Independent director) with the following directors as members:

Lim Yeow Hua (Non-Executive Independent)
Lee Edan Kietchai (Non-Executive Non-Independent)

The primary functions of the NC are as follows:

° fo identify candidates and review all nominations for the appointment or reappointfment of members of the Board,
the CEO of the Group, and to determine the selection criteria therefor;

° fo ensure that all Board appointees undergo an appropriate induction programme;

° fo regularly review the Board structure, size and composition and make recommendations to the Board with regard
fo any adjustments that are deemed necessary;

° fo identify gaps in the mix of skills, experience and other qualities required in an effective Board and to nominate
or recommend suitable candidates to fill these gaps;

o fo decide whether a director is able to and has been adequately carrying out his duties as director of the Company,
particularly where the director has multiple board representations;

° fo review the independence of each director annually;

° fo decide how the Board’s performance may be evaluated and propose objective performance criteria for the
Board's approval; and

° fo evaluate the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and assess the contribution by each individual director, to the

effectiveness of the Board.
For the year under review, the NC held two (2) meetings.

The directors will submit themselves for re-nomination and re-election at regular intervals of at least once every three (3)
years. Under the Company's existing Articles of Association, one-third of the directors for the time being (or if their number
is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. In reviewing
and recommending fo the Board the re-nomination and re-election of existing directors, the NC takes info consideration
the directors’ contribution and performance at Board meetings, including attendance, preparedness, participation and
candour.
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Each member of the NC abstains from making any recommendations and/or participating in any deliberation of the NC
and from voting on any resolution, in respect of the assessment of his own performance or re-nomination as a director.

The NC is satisfied that sufficient time and attention are being given by the directors to the affairs of the Company and
Group, notwithstanding that some of the directors have multiple board representations.

In its search and nomination process for new directors, the NC has, at its disposal, search companies, personal contacts
and recommendations, fo cast its net as wide as possible for the right candidates.

Key information regarding the directors is set out on pages 6 and 7.
Board Performance

Principle 5 : There should be a formal assessment of the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution
by each director to the effectiveness of the Board.

The NC reviews the criteria for evaluating the Board's performance and recommends fo the Board a set of objective
performance criteria focusing on enhancing long-ferm shareholders’ value. Based on the recommendations of the NC,
the Board has established processes for evaluating the effectiveness of the Board as a whole.

The performance criteria for the Board evaluation includes an evaluation of the size and composition of the Board, the
Board's access to information, accountability, Board processes, Board performance in relation to discharging its principal
responsibilities, communication with management and standards of conduct of the directors.

In the course of the year, the NC has conducted the assessment by preparing a questionnaire to be completed by each
director, of which were then collated and the findings were analyzed and discussed with a view to implementing certain

recommendations to further enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

Access to Infomation

Principle 6 : In order to fulfill their responsibilities, board members should be provided with complete, adequate
and timely information prior to board meetings and on an on-going basis.

To assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities, the management provides the Board with a management report
containing complete, adequate and timely information prior fo the Board meetings. All directors have separated and
independent access fo the management, including the Company Secretary at all times. The Company Secretary aftends
all Board meetings and ensures that Board procedures and all other rules and regulations applicable to the Company
are complied with.

Changes to regulations are closely monitored by Management and for changes which have an important bearing on
the Company or the Directors’ disclosure obligations, the Directors are briefed during Board meetings.

The directors and the chairmen of the respective committees, whether as a group or individually are able to seek
independent professional advice as and when necessary in furtherance of their duties af the Company’s expense. The
appointment of such professional advisor is subject to approval by the Board.
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(B) REMUNERATION MATTERS

Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies

Principle 7 : There should be a formal and transparent procedure for fixing the remuneration packages of individual
directors. No director should be involved in deciding his own remuneration.

Currently, the RC comprises of a majority of Non-executive and Independent directors. It is chaired by Mr Lim Yeow Hua
(Non-Executive and Independent) with the following directors as members:

Heng Hang Siong (Non-Executive and Independent)
Wang Anson (Non-Executive and Non-Independent)

The members of the RC have many years of corporate experience and are knowledgeable in the field of executive
compensation. In addition, the RC has access to expert professional advice on remuneration matters as and when

necessary.

The responsibilities of the RC include the following:

° o review directors’ fees to ensure that they are at sufficiently competitive levels;

° fo review and approve any proposal relating to and administer the CMZ Employee Share Option Scheme 2010
("ESOS") for directors, senior management and executives;

° fo review and advise the Board on the terms of appointment and remuneration of its members, CEO, key executive
officers, senior management of the Group and all managerial staff who are related to any of the directors or the
CEO;

° fo review the tferms of the employment arrangements with management so as to develop consistent group wide
employment practices subject to regional differences;

° fo recommend to the Board in consultation with senior management and the Chairman of the Board, any long
ferm incentive scheme; and

° fo review and approve any proposals or recommendations relating fo senior management’s remuneration.

For the year under review, the RC held two (2) meetings.

The RC reviews all aspects of remunerafion and compensation packages including but not limited to directors’ fees,
salaries, allowances, bonuses, options and benefits-in-kind.

No director is involved in determining his own remuneration.

Level and Mix of Remuneration

Principle 8 : The level of remuneration should be appropriate to attract, retain and motivate the directors needed
fo run the company successfully but companies should avoid paying more for this purpose. A proportion of the
remuneration, especially that of executive directors, should be linked to performance.

In setting remuneration packages, the RC takes into consideration the prevailing economic situation, the pay and
employment conditions within the industry and in comparable companies. As part of its review, the RC ensures that the
performance related elements of remuneration form a significant part of the total remuneration package of executive
directors and is designed to align the directors’ interests with those of shareholders and link rewards to corporate and
individual performance. The RC also reviews all matters concerning the remuneration of non-executive directors to ensure
that the remuneration commensurate with the contribution and responsibilities of the directors. The Company submits
the quantum of directors’ fees of each year to the shareholders for approval at each Annual General Meeting.
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Non-executive directors have no service contracts. The executive director has service contract and he does not receive
directors’ fees for the year under review.

Long term incentive scheme

CMZ Employee Share Option Scheme 2010 was implemented on 31 March 2010 as a long-term incentive plan to
replace the 2008 Option Scheme, which was implemented in June 2008, for executive directors, non-executive directors
and employees based on individual performance. It is administered by the RC. As at the Latest Practicable Date on 19
September 2013, an aggregate of 5,140,000 ESOS options had been granted under the CMZ Employee Share Option
Scheme 2010. No options granted under the CMZ Employee Share Option Scheme 2010 have been exercised since
implementation.

Details of the ESOS are set out in the Directors’ Report and Note 27 to the financial statements.

Disclosure on Remuneration

Principle 9 : Each company should provide clear disclosure of its remuneration policy, level and mix of remuneration,
and the procedure for setting remuneration, in the company’s annual report.

A breakdown of the remuneration of the directors and the top 7 key executives (who are not also directors) for the
financial year ended 30 June 2013 are set out below:

Remuneration of the directors

Remuneration band and names of directors Salary Bonus ESOS Directors’ fees® Total
Between $$500,000 to $$749,999

Lin Guo Rong ™ 42% 58% - - 100%
Below $$250,000

Lim Gee Kiat - - - 100% 100%
Lee Edan Kietchai - - - 100% 100%
Wang Anson - - - 100% 100%
Lim Yeow Hua - - - 100% 100%
Heng Hang Siong - - - 100% 100%

Remuneration of top 7 Key Executives (who are not directors)

Remuneration band and names of key

executives (who are not directors) Salary Bonus ESOS Directors’ fees® Total
Between $$500,000 to $$749,999

Siek Wei Ting @ 40% 60% - - 100%
Between $§$250,000 to $$499.999

Huang Bing Hui @ 36% 64% - - 100%
Wang Dazhang O 36% 64% - - 100%
Below §$250,000

Professor Lin Mei Xi 100% - - - 100%
Chen Jian Fang 100% - - - 100%
Zheng Li Xia 100% - - - 100%
Yu Qiu Rong 100% - - - 100%

(@) These are under the service agreements entered for a period of three years each with effect from the date of listing on 15 April 2010.
Thereafter, the service agreements are being renewed on an annual basis.
@ The direcfors’fees had been approved at the Company’s Annual General Meeting held on 25 Octfober 2012.
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There are no employees of the Group who are immediate family members of a director or the CEO and whose remuneration
exceeds $$150,000 during the financial year ended 30 June 2013.

(C) ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Accountability
Principle 10 : The Board is accountable to the shareholders while the Management is accountable to the Board.

The Board endeavors to ensure that the annual audited financial statements and quarterly announcements of the Group's
results present a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects.The Board embraces
openness and transparency in the conduct of the Company’s affairs, whilst preserving the commercial inferests of the
Company. Financial and other price sensitive information are disseminated fo shareholders through announcements via
SGXNET.

Audit Committee

Principle 11 : The Board should establish an Audit Committee ("AC”) with wriften terms of reference which clearly
set out its authority and duties.

The AC inter alia, oversees the quality and infegrity of the accounting, auditing, infernal controls and financial practices
of the Group. It comprises of majority of Non-Executive and Independent directors which is chaired by Mr Lim Yeow Hua
(a Non-Executive and Independent director) with the following directors as members:

Lee Edan Kietchai (Non-Executive and Non-Independent)
Heng Hang Siong (Non-Executive and Independent)
Lim Gee Kiat (Non-Executive and Independent)

All members of the AC have many years of experience in senior management positions in both financial and industrial
sectors. The Board is of the view that the AC members, having accounting and related financial management expertise
or experience, are appropriately qualified fo discharge their responsibilities.

During the past financial year, the AC had held four (4) meetings with the management, two (2) meetings with the
external auditors and one (1) meeting with the infernal auditors of the Company o discuss and review the following
matters:

° the audit plans of the external and internal auditors of the Company, and their reports arising from the audit;

° the adequacy of the assistance and cooperation given by the Company's management fo the external and
intfernal auditors;

° the financial statements of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group;

° the quarterly and annual announcement of the results of the Group before submission to the Board for approval;

° the adequacy of the Group's internal controls in respect of the management, business and service systems and
practices;

° legal and regulatory matters that may have material impact on the financial statements, compliance policies and
programmes and any reports received from regulators;

° the review of product liability insurance coverage annually;

° the cost effectiveness, independence and objectivity of the external auditors;

° the approval of compensation to the external auditors;

° the nature and extent of non-audit services provided by the external auditors;
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° the recommendation to the Board for the appointment or re-appointment of the internal and external auditors of
the Company;

° fo report actions and minutes of the AC to the Board with such recommendations as the AC considers appropriate;
and

° inferested person fransactions to ensure that the current procedures for monitoring of inferested party tfransactions

have been complied with.
In performing its functions, the AC :

° met twice with the external auditors (once without the presence of the Company's management) and once with
the internal auditors and reviewed the overall scope of the external and internal audit and the assistance given by
the management to the auditors;

° has explicit authority fo investigate any matter relating to the Group's accounting, auditing, infernal controls and
financial practices brought to its attention with full access fo records, resources and personnel fo enable it fo
discharge its function properly; and

° has full access to and cooperation of the management and full discretion to invite any director or executive officer
fo aftend its meetings.

The external and internal auditors have unrestricted access to the AC.

The AC has undertaken a review of all the non-audit services provided by the external auditors during the year under
review and is satisfied that such services would not, in the AC’s opinion, affect the independence of the external auditors.
The AC recommends to the Board the re-appointment of Messrs Crowe Horwath First Trust LLP as the external auditors
of the Company at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Pursuant to Rule 1207(6)(c) of the listing manual, the
Company confirms that it has complied with Rules 712 and 715 in relation to its external auditors.

The Company has a whistle blowing policy which provides well-defined and accessible channels in the Group through
which employees may raise concerns about improper conduct within the Group. Details of the whistle blowing policy

and arrangements have been made available fo the employees.

The AC has reviewed on the Company'’s key financial risk areas and noted that save from the exchange rate differences,
the Group has not enfered info any financial contracts which will give rise to financial risks.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

Principle 12 : The Board should ensure that the Management maintains a sound system of internal controls to
safeguard the shareholders’ investments and the company’s assets.

The Board recognizes the importance of sound internal control and risk management policies and has on 1 September
2012 set up ifs Risk Management Commiftfee ("RMC"). It is chaired by Mr Lim Gee Kiat (Non-Executive and Independent

Director) with the following Directors as members:

Mr Heng Hang Siong (Non-Executive and Independent)
Mr Lin Guo Rong (Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

During the past financial year, the RMC had held two (2) meetings with the management.
The RMC assesses and recommends to the Board on managing the Company’s and Group’s business and financial risks.

The CFO reports directly to the RMC on risk management issues. The RMC is also in the process of setting up its own Risk
Management manual.
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At the Board level, the RMC oversees strategic risk management issues and with the assistance of the Management,
reviews the Group’s business and operatfional activities to determine areas of significant business risks as well as
appropriate measures to control and mitigate such risks in accordance with the Group’s policies and strategies. The
RMC sets the limits for various types of risks, such as market, credit, operational, compliance and reputational risks. The
RMC also approves new activities that the Company plans to embark on and oversees the risk management practices
of the Company.

The Board ensures that the management maintains a sound system of infernal controls and effective risk management
policies to safeguard the shareholders' investment and the Company's assets with the assistance of the AC and RMC
which conducts the reviews.

The Company's internal and external auditors conduct an annual review of the effectiveness of the Company’s material
infernal controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk assessment at least annually to
ensure the adequacy thereof. This review will be conducted by the Company’s internal and external auditors which will
then present their findings to the AC. Any material non-compliance or failures in internal controls and recommendations
for improvements are reported fo the AC.The AC also reviews the effectiveness of the actions faken by the management
on the recommendations made by the infernal and external auditors in this respect.

Having considered the financial statements audit carried out by the external auditor, the internal confrols in place
in the Company and the reviews carried out by the internal auditor as well as the AC and RMC, the Board opines
that the Company’s system of internal controls is adequate to provide reasonable assurance on the integrity and
effectiveness of the Company in safeguarding its assets and shareholders’ interest, and in against material misstatement,
misrepresentation or loss.

The Group financial risk management objectives and policies are discussed under Note 32 of the Notes to the Financial
Statements on pages 93 to 101 of the Annual Report.

Internal Audit

Principle 13 : The company should establish an internal audif function that is independent of the activities it audits.
Messrs Ernst & Young Advisory Pte. Ltd. ("EY"), a professional accounting firm has been appointed to carry out the infernal
audit functions. EY will carry out major infernal control checks and compliance tests as instructed by the AC.The AC will
review the internal auditors’ reports and to ensure that there are adequate internal controls in the Group.

EY reports to the AC on audit matters and reports administratively fo the Management.The AC also reviews annually and
approves the annual internal audit plans and resources to ensure that EY has the necessary resources to adequately
perform its functions.

(D) COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Communication with Shareholders

Principle 14 : Companies should engage in regular, effective and fair communication with shareholders.

Principle 15 : Companies should encourage greater shareholder participation at AGMs, and allow shareholders
the opportunity to communicate their views on various matters affecting the company.

The Company believes that a high standard of disclosure is key to raising the level of corporate governance. Quarterly
results and news releases are published through the SGXNET. All information of the Company’s new initiatives are first
disseminated via SGXNET followed by a news release. In addition, the Company also holds analysis briefing of its quarterly
and full year results.
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The Company does not practice selective disclosure. Price sensitive information is publicly released and results and
annual reports are announced or issued within the mandatory period and are available on the Company’s website. All
shareholders of the Company receive the annual report and notice of Annual General Meeting ("AGM”). The notice of
AGM is also advertised in the newspaper.

The Company welcomes the views of the shareholders on matters concerning the Company and encourages
shareholders’ participation at Annual General Meetings. The chairmen of the AC, RMC, NC and RC of the Company are
normally present at the general meetings fo answer questions from the shareholders. The external auditors will also be
present to assist the directors in addressing any relevant queries by shareholders.

Each item of special business included in the notice of the meeting is accompanied, where appropriate, by an explanation
for the proposed resolution. Separate resolutions are proposed for substantially separate issues at the meeting.

The Company Secretary prepares minutes of shareholders’ meetings, which incorporates substantial comments or queries
from shareholders and responses from the board and management. These minutes are available to shareholders upon
request.

(E) DEALINGS IN SECURITIES

The Company has issued a guideline on share dealings fo all directors and employees of the Group which sets out
the code of conduct on transactions in the Company’s shares by these persons, the implications of insider trading and
general guidance on the prohibition against such dealings.

In line with Listing Rule 1207(19) issued by the SGX-ST, the Company issues a notification to all officers of the Company
informing them that they should not deal in the securities of the Company during the periods commencing one month
before the announcement of the Company’s full-year results and two weeks before the Company’s quarterly or half-year
results until after the announcement. They are also discouraged from dealing in the Company’s shares on short term
considerations.

The Board confirms that for the financial year ended 30 June 2013, the Company has complied with Listing Rule 1207(19).

(F) INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTION

As a listed company on the SGX-ST, the Company is required to comply with Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual of the SGX-
ST on inferested person fransactions. To ensure compliance with Chapter 9, the Company has faken the following steps:

° The Board meets fo review if the Company will be entering info any inferested person transaction. If the Company
infends to enter into an interested person transaction, the Board of Directors will ensure that the Company complies
with the requisite rules under Chapter 9.

° The AC has met and will meet regularly to review if the Company will be enfering into an interested person
fransaction, and if so, the AC ensures that the relevant rules under Chapter 9 are complied with.
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Our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Lin Guo Rong is currently providing personal guarantees to secure a banking
facility extended to our Group, namely our Fujian Minzhong Organic Food Co., Ltd. by Industrial Bank Co. Ltd. Accordingly,
the Group'’s present on-going interested person transactions are set out below:

Expiry date of the Amount guaranteed Drawdown as of

guarantee ('million) 30.06.2013 (‘million) Lender

30 December 2014 RMB50.0 Nil Industrial Bank Co. Ltd.
6 March 2016 RMB100.0 Nil Industrial Bank Co. Ltd.

(G) MATERIAL CONTRACTS

In the Directors’ Report and these financial statements, no material contfracts to which the Company or any subsidiary, is
a party and which involve the interests of the chief executive officer, directors or controlling shareholders, were subsisting
at the end of the financial year or entered into since the date of listing of the Company.
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The Board of Directors of the Company has established a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which will include the
review of the following areas of the Group’s activities:

Q. fo review and recommend the Group's policy with regards to corporate social responsibility;

b. fo review the Group’s environmental policies and standards;

C. fo review the social impact of the Group's business practices in the communities that it operates in;

d. fo review and recommend policies and practices with regard to key stakeholders (suppliers, customers and
employees); and

e. o review and recommend policies and practices with regard to regulators.

Core Values of the CSR Policy

The Company aims to be recognised as an organisation that is fransparent and ethical in all its dealings as well as
making a positive contribution to the community in which it operates. It is committed to the following core values in all
aspects of its work, including the fulflment of its social responsibility:

. Clear direction and strong leadership;

o Customer focus;

° Respect for people;

° Open communication;

o Working fo deliver best value;

° Openness and transparency

. Equality

. Development of positive working relationships with others; and
o Valuing and harnessing the diversity of Company staff.

CSR Sirategic

The Company will seek to achieve corporate and social objectives by focusing on four strategic areas:

° Equal Opportunities - emphasising our commitment to the promotion of equal opportunities and fo the ethos of
hiring based on merits.

° Good Relations - The Company will develop and adopt an employee relations strategy which will be reviewed
annually and will be implemented and endorsed through a corporate action plan.The aim of the strategy is to
enhance management and employee inferactions and address the needs and aspirations of staff through the
continuing development of diversity, work-life balance and health and well-being policies and initiatives.

° Community Impact - encouraging and assisting staff to greater involvement in team/individual projects in support
of the wider community.

° Environment - further developing environmental management practices that minimise waste and maximise
efficiencies.
CSR Activities

Please refer to page 19 of this Annual Report.
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Directors’ Report

For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2013

The directors present their report to the members tfogether with the audited financial statements of China Minzhong Food
Corporation Limited (the "Company”) and subsidiaries (the "Group”) for the financial year ended 30 June 2013 and the
balance sheet of the Company as at 30 June 2013.

Directors
The directors of the Company in office at the date of this report are as follows:

Lin Guo Rong
Wang Anson

Lee Edan Kietchai
Lim Gee Kiat

Lim Yeow Hua
Heng Hang Siong

Arrangements to enable directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures

Except as disclosed under "Share options” in this report, neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was
the Company a party to any arrangement whose objects was to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ interests in shares or debentures

According fo the register kept by the Company for the purposes of section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act, Cap.
50, none of the directors holding office at the end of the financial year had any interest in the shares or debentures of the
Company or its related corporations, except as follows:

Direct interest Deemed interest

At At At At
1 July 2012 30 June 2013 1 July 2012 30 June 2013

The Company

Ordinary shares

Lin Guo Rong 12,978,000 13,103,000 22,411,297 22,411,297
Wang Anson - - 35,792,643 -
Lee Edan Kietchai - - 57,231,618 -

Except as disclosed above and those disclosed under share options, no director who held office at the end of the
financial year had interests in shares or debentures of the Company or related corporation, either at the beginning of the
financial year or at the end of the financial year.

The directors’ interests in the ordinary shares of the Company and its related corporations as at 21 July 2013 were the
same as those of 30 June 2013.
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Directors’ contractual benefits

Under the terms of the service agreements (which is renewed on an annual basis) entered into between the Company
and Lin Guo Rong for a period of three years with effect from the date of listing, he is enfitled fo a stipulated monthly salary.
Under the service agreements, he is entitled fo a basic bonus and a performance bonus as stipulated, at the end of
each completed year of service.The salary of the Executive Director is subject to annual review by the Board of Directors
("Board”) and the Remuneration Committee and fo be approved by the Board.

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled fo receive a benefit by reason
of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which the director
is a member, or with a company in which the director has a substantial financial interest, except as disclosed in the
accompanying financial statements.

Share options

Pursuant fo the Board Meeting held on 24 August 2012, the Directors granted 2,678,000 share options of the Company on
4 September 2012 to selected eligible employees of the Group and an Executive Director of the Company fo subscribe
for 2,678,000 ordinary shares in the Company at an exercise price of $$0.74 per share, under the CMZ Employee Share
Option Scheme 2010 ("Scheme”) which was approved on 31 March 2010. Options granted have a term no longer than
3 years, and with 1 year vesting period from grant date.The option holder is not entitled o dividends prior fo exercise.

The directors of the Group who receives the share options granted during the financial year are as follows:

Number of shares under option
Aggregate Aggregate Aggregate
option granted  granted since  exercised since
in financial year commencement commencement Aggregate
ended of Scheme to of Scheme to outstanding as
30 June 2013 30 June 2013 30 June 2013 at 30 June 2013

Director of the Company
Lin Guo Rong 819,000 1,571,000 - 1,571,000

Directors of the subsidiary

Wang Dazhang 568,000 1,092,000 - 1,092,000
Huang Bing Hui 568,000 1,092,000 - 1,092,000
Siek Wei Ting 723,000 1,385,000 - 1,385,000

2,678,000 5,140,000 - 5,140,000

2,462,000 share options are exercisable at the exercise price of $$1.26 per share from 20 September 2012 and expire on
20 September 2014 if the service vesting conditions are met. 2,678,000 share options are exercisable at the exercise price
of $80.74 per share from 3 September 2013 and expire on 3 September 2015 if the service vesting conditions are met.

No options have been granted to controlling shareholders of the Company or their associates (as defined in the Listing
Manual of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited).
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Share options (Continued)

No participant under the Scheme has received 5% or more of the fotal number of shares under option available under
the Scheme.

No options have been granted at a discount during the financial year.

No options that entitle the holder fo participate, by virtue of the options, in any share issue of any other corporations have
been granted.

The Scheme is administered by the Remuneration Committee comprising the following members:

Lim Yeow Hua (Chairman)
Heng Hang Siong
Wang Anson

Audit committee
The members of the Audit Committee af the end of the financial year are as follows:

Lim Yeow Hua (Chairman)
Heng Hang Siong

Lee Edan Kietchai

Lim Gee Kiat

The Audit Committee carried out its functions in accordance with Section 201B(5) of the Singapore Companies Act, Cap.
50, the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited and the Code of Corporate Governance. In
performing those functions, the Audit Committee reviewed:

- the scope and the results of infernal audit procedures with the internal auditor;

- the audit plan of the Company’s independent auditors and any recommendations on infernal accounting controls
arising from the statufory audit;

- the assistance given by the Company’s management to the independent auditors;

- the periodic results announcements prior to their submission to the Board for approval;

- the balance sheet of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial year
ended 30 June 2013 prior to their submission to the Board of Directors, as well as the independent auditors’ report
on the balance sheet of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group; and

- interested person fransactions (as defined in Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited).

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors that the independent auditors, Crowe Horwath First Trust
LLP be nominated for re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.The Audit Committee
has conducted an annual review of non-audit services provided by the auditors to satisfy itself that the nature and
extent of such services will not affect the independence and objectivity of the external auditors before confirming their
re-nomination.
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Audit committee (Continued)

In appointing the external auditors for the Company and subsidiaries, we have complied with Rules 712 and 715 of the
Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

Further details regarding the Audit Committee are disclosed in the Report on Corporate Governance.

Based on the infernal controls established and maintained by the Group, work performed by the infernal and external
auditors, and reviews performed by management, various Board Committees and the Board, the Audit Committee and
the Board are of the opinion that the Group’s internal controls, addressing financial, operational and compliance risks,
were adequate as at 30 June 2013.

Independent auditors

The independent auditors, Crowe Horwath First Trust LLP have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment as
auditors of the Company.

On behailf of the Board of Directors

LIN GUO RONG LIM YEOW HUA
Director Director

1 October 2013
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Statement by Directors

In the opinion of the directors,
(a) thebalance sheet of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group as set out on pages 42
fo 102 are drawn up so as to give a frue and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at

30 June 2013 and of the results, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group for the financial year then ended;
and

(b) af the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able fo pay ifs
debts as and when they fall due.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

LIN GUO RONG LIM YEOW HUA
Director Director

1 October 2013
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of China Minzhong Food Corporation Limited

Crowe Horwath First Trust LLP

Crowe Horwath Chartered Accountants of Singapore

Member Crowe Horwath International

8 Shenton Way

#05-01 AXA Tower
Singapore 068811

+65 6221 0338

+65 6221 1080 Fax
www.crowehorwath.com.sg

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of China Minzhong Food Corporation Limited (the *Company”)
and subsidiaries (collectively, the "Group”) set out on pages 42 to 102, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet
and the balance sheet of the Company as at 30 June 2013, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for the financial
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a frue and fair view in accordance with
the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act (the "Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, and for devising
and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are
safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and that tfransactions are properly authorised and that
they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair profit and loss accounts and balance sheets
and fo maintain accountability of assets.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures fo obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers infernal control relevant fo the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order fo design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s infernal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Crowe Horwath First Trust LLP (UEN: TO8LL1312H) is an accounting limited liability partnership registered in Singapore under the Limited
Liability Partnership Act (Chapter 163A).
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of China Minzhong Food Corporation Limited

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheet of the Company are properly
drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as fo give a frue
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 30 June 2013, and the results, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Group for the financial year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act fo be kept by the Company have been properly kept
in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Crowe Horwath First Trust LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

1 October 2013



CHINA MINZHONG FOOD CORPORATION LIMITED

Balance Sheets

As at 30 June 2013

(Amounts in RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

EQUITY

Share capital and reserves

Share capital

Statutory reserve fund

Employees’ share option reserve
Translation (deficit) / reserve

Retained earnings / (Accumulated losses)

TOTAL EQUITY

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Deferred tax assets

Property, plant and equipment
Land use rights

Biological assets

Land improvement costs
Subsidiaries

Operating lease prepayments

Current assets

Land use rights

Biological assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Due from a subsidiary (non-trade)
Operating lease prepayments

Tax recoverable

Ofther receivables and prepayments
Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

Note

S0 ®~NOo O g

o

11
32
14
10

12
13

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
1,503,789 1,072,268 1,503,789 1,072,268
93,995 79,007 - -
4,629 1,740 4,629 1,740
(677) 6,106 (19.040) 14,932
3,168,278 2,428,201 (112,078) (150,052)
4,770,014 3,587,322 1,377,300 938,888
6,000 6,000 - -
2,068,503 1,831,968 1,537 -
123,740 126,500 - -
150,000 168,000 - -
259,721 347,668 - -
- - 1,293,640 919,064
372,782 448,180 - -
2,766 2,757 - -
33.641 34,635 - -
69,397 104,125 - -
1,097,969 967,115 - -
- - 86,073 25,567
62,787 67,693 - -
67,191 4,422 297 -
693,985 412,223 291 364
826,431 66,209 16,850 5,286
2,854,167 1,659,179 103,511 31,217
5,834,913 4,587,495 1,398,688 950,281

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of the financial statements.
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Balance Sheets
As at 30 June 2013
(Amounts in RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

Note Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade payables 303,698 216,058 - -
Other payables and accruals 15 97,771 132,145 18,738 11,393
Bank term loans 16 635,646 612,630 - -
Income tax liabilities 45 7,287 - -
Government grants 17 3,354 3,501 - -
1,040,514 971,621 18,738 11,393
Non-current liabilities
Bank term loans 16 - 3,555 - -
Government grants 17 21,735 24,997 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 18 2,650 - 2,650 -
24,385 28,552 2,650 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,064,899 1,000,173 21,388 11,393
NET ASSETS 4,770,014 3,587,322 1,377,300 938,888

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of the financial statements.



CHINA MINZHONG FOOD CORPORATION LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2013
(Amounts in RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

Note 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000

Revenue 19 3,247,773 2,568,839
Cost of sales (2,132,115)  (1,582,951)
Gross profit 1,115,658 985,888
Loss on fair value of biological assets less estimated point of sales cost 7 (18.,000) (8.000)
Other income 20 49,389 48,619
Selling and distribution expenses (121,398) (118,728)
Administrative expenses (124,495) (98,700)
Other expenses 2] (51.354) (47.0871)
Finance cost 22 (47,877) (35,828)
Profit before income tax 23 801,923 726,170
Income tax 25 (46,858) (46,589)
Profit for the year 755,065 679,581
Other comprehensive loss
Item that may be reclassified subsequently fo profit or loss:
- Currency translation difference arising from consolidation (6.783) (1,686)
Total comprehensive income for the year 748,282 677,895
Earnings per share (RMB)

Basic 26(0) 1.28 1.22

Diluted 26(b) 1.28 1.22

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2013
(Amounts in RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

Employees’
share Translation
Share Statutory option reserve / Retained Total
capital reserve fund reserve (deficit) earnings equity

RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000

Balance at 1.7.2012 1,072,268 79,007 1,740 6,106 2,428,201 3,587,322
Profit for the year - - - - 755,065 755,065
Other comprehensive loss, net of fax - - - (6,783) - (6,783)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (6.783) 755,065 748,282

Contributions by and distributions to

owners
Issue of new shares 454,819 - - - - 454,819
Share issuance expenses (23,298) - - - - (23,298)
Appropriation to statutory reserve fund - 14,988 - - (14,988) -
Grant of employees’ share option

(Note 27) - - 2,889 - - 2,889
Total contributions by and distributions

to owners 431,521 14,988 2,889 - (14,988) 434,410
Balance at 30.6.2013 1,503,789 93,995 4,629 (677) 3,168,278 4,770,014

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of the financial statements.



CHINA MINZHONG FOOD CORPORATION LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2013
(Amounts in RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

Employees’
share
Share Statutory option Translation Retained Total
capital reserve fund reserve reserve earnings equity

RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000

Balance at 1.7.2011 1,072,268 62,497 - 7,792 1,765,130 2,907,687
Profit for the year - - - - 679,581 679,581
Other comprehensive loss, net of fax - - - (1,686) - (1,686)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (1.686) 679,581 677,895

Contributions by and distributions to
owners

Grant of employees’ share option
(Note 27) - - 1,740 - - 1,740

Appropriation to statutory reserve fund - 16,510 - - (16,510) -

Total contributions by and distributions
fo owners - 16,510 1,740 - (16,510) 1,740

Balance at 30.6.2012 1,072,268 79.007 1,740 6,106 2,428,201 3,587,322

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2013
(Amounts in RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

2013 2012
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax 801,923 726,170
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 81,012 57,480
Property, plant and equipment written off 376 1,277
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 440
Gain on disposal of operating lease prepayments and land improvement costs (1.170) -
Amortisation of land use rights 2,751 2,757
Amortisation of land improvement costs 91,823 64,222
Amortisation of operating lease prepayments 67,054 67,693
Other payables written off (6.220) (2,359)
Impairment allowance for tfrade receivables 11,451 16,977
Reversal of allowance for trade receivables (1.2071) -
Loss on fair value of biological assets less point of sales cost 18,000 8,000
Amortisation of government grants (7.963) (12,131)
Inferest income (459) (353)
Inferest expense on bank term loans 47,877 35,828
Employees’ share option expense 2,889 1,740
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,109,143 967,741
Inventories 34,728 (50,225)
Biological assets 994 (7.088)
Trade receivables (141,104) (754,031)
Other receivables and prepayments (49,701) 59,408
Trade payables 87,640 131,373
Other payables and accruals (33.749) 69,973
Cash generated from operations 1.007,951 417,151
Income fax paid (112,050) (68,421)
Interest received 459 353
Net cash generated from operating activities 896,360 359,083

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of the financial statements.



CHINA MINZHONG FOOD CORPORATION LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2013
(Amounts in RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB’000
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (Note A) (600,558) (640,473)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment - 400
Proceeds from disposal of operatfing lease prepayments and land improvement costs 16,170 -
Addition to land improvement costs (Note A) (6.626) (92,156)
Refund from purchase / (purchase) of land use rights 53,000 (908)
Net cash used in investing activities (637,014) (733,137)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of new shares 454,819 -
Share issue expense (23.298) -
Proceeds from bank term loans 883,800 802,000
Repayment of bank term loans (864,545) (613.130)
Government grants received 4,554 26,270
Interest paid (47.677) (35,622)
Pledge of bank balances (Note 13) (17.120) (24,075)
Net cash generated from financing activities 390,539 255,443
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 749,885 (118,611)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 42,134 162,431
Effects of exchange rate changes in cash and cash equivalents (6.783) (1,686)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 13) 785,236 42,134

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2013
(Amounts in RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

Note A
2013 2012
RMB’'000 RMB’000
Total additions to property, plant and equipment (Note 5) 317,923 777,637
Less: Increase in outstanding amount included in other payables (Note 15) (4.596) 1,121)
Add / (Less): Increase / (Decrease) in amounts prepaid included
in prepayments (Note 12) 287,231 (126,043)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment per consolidated statement of cash flows 600,558 640,473
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
Total additions to land improvement costs (Nofe 8) 5,626 196,379
Less: Increase in outstanding amount included in other payables (Note 15) - (3.409)
Less: Decrease in amounts prepaid included in prepayments (Note 12) - (100.814)
Land improvement costs per consolidated statement of cash flows 5,626 92,156

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of the financial statements.



CHINA MINZHONG FOOD CORPORATION LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2013
(Amounts in RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

These notes form an infegral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements.

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

China Minzhong Food Corporation Limited (the "*Company”) is a limited company domiciled and incorporated
in Singapore.The Company was admitted to the official list on the mainboard of the SGX-ST on 15 April 2010. The
address of the Company'’s registered office is located af 9 Battery Road, #15-01 Straits Trading Building, Singapore
049910. The principal place of business of the Company is No. 552, Ba Er Yi North Street, Changlin Residents’
Committee, Licheng District, Fujian Province, People’s Republic of China ("PRC").

The principal activities of the Company are those of investment holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries
are shown in Nofe 9 to the financial statements.

The financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2013 were authorised for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the Board of Directors on 1 October 2013.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in
the accounting policies below and are drawn up in accordance with the Singapore Financial Reporting Standards
("FRS™). The financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi ("RMB’000").

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS requires management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. It also requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements,
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the financial year. Although these estimates are based
on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions used that are significant fo the financial statements and
areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, are disclosed in this Note.

Adoption of new and revised standards

On 1 July 2012, the Group adopted the new or amended FRS and Inferpretations of FRS (*INT FRS") that are
mandatory for application from that date. Changes fo the Group’s accounting policies have been made as
required, in accordance with the transitional provisions in the respective FRS and INT FRS. The adoption of these
new or amended FRS and INT FRS did noft result in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies and had
no material effect on the amounts reported for the current or prior financial years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2013
(Amounts in RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Standards issued but not yet effective
The Group has not adopted the following standards and inferpretations that have been issued but not yet effective:

Effective for annual
periods beginning

Description on or after
Revised FRS 19 Employee Benefits 1 January 2013
FRS 113 Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013
Amendments to FRS 107 Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 1 January 2013
Improvements to FRSs 2012

- Amendment fo FRS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements 1 January 2013
- Amendment to FRS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment 1 January 2013
- Amendment to FRS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation 1 January 2013
Revised FRS 27 Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2014
Revised FRS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Vientures 1 January 2014
FRS 110 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2014
FRS 111 Joint Arrangements 1 January 2014
FRS 112 Disclosure of inferests in Other Entities 1 January 2014
Amendments to FRS 110, 111 and 112: Transition Guidance 1 January 2014
Amendments to FRS 110, 112 and FRS 27: Investment Entities 1 January 2014
Amendments o FRS 32 - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 1 January 2014
Amendments to FRS 36 - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets 1 January 2014
Amendments o FRS 39 - Novation of Derivatives and Confinuation of Hedge Accounting 1 January 2014

Except for the FRS 113 and Improvements to FRSs 2012 - Amendment to FRS 1, the directors expect that the adoption
of the other standards and interpretations above will have no material impact on the financial statements in the
period of initial application. The nature of the impending changes in accounting policy on adoption of FRS 113
and Improvements fo FRSs 2012 - FRS 1 is described below.

FRS 113 Fair Value Measurement

FRS 113 Fair Value Measurement provides a single source of guidance for all fair value measurements. FRS 113 does
not change when an entity is required fo use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value
under FRS when fair value is required or permitted by FRS. The directors are currently assessing the impact fo the
financial position and financial performance of the Group.

Improvements to FRSs 2012 - Amendment to FRS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

The Amendment clarifies that an entity must include comparative in the related notes to the financial statements
when it voluntarily provides comparative information beyond the minimum required comparative period. However,
unlike the voluntary comparative information, the related notes are not required to accompany the third balance
sheet.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2013
(Amounts in RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Group accounting

@

®)

Subsidiaries

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries are entifies (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has power to govern the
financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities, generally accompanied by a
shareholding giving rise to a majority of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is fransferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the datfe on which control ceases.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
fransactions between group entities are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated but are considered
an impairment indicator of the asset tfransferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests are that part of the net results of operations and of net assets of a subsidiary
aftfributable fo the interests which are not owned directly or indirectly by the equity holders of the Company.
They are shown separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes
in equity and balance sheet.Total comprehensive income is affributed to the non-controlling interests based
on their respective inferests in a subsidiary, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Acquisition of businesses

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the Group. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the fair value of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration tfransferred also
includes the fair value of any contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs, other than
those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, are expensed as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are,
with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Any contingent consideratfion fo be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the
acquisition datfe. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to
be an asset or liability, will be recognised in accordance with FRS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to
other comprehensive income. If the confingent consideration is classified as equity, it will not be remeasured
until it is finally seftled within equity.

In business combinations achieved in stages, previously held equity inferests in the acquiree are remeasured
fo fair value at the acquisition date and any corresponding gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2013
(Amounts in RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Group accounting (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

©

Disposals of subsidiaries or businesses

The assefs and liabilities of the subsidiary, including any goodwill, are derecognised when a change in
the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary results in a loss of control over the subsidiary. Amounts
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are also reclassified fo profit or loss or
fransferred directly fo retained earnings if required by a specific Standard.

Any retained inferest in the entity is remeasured aft fair value. The difference between the carrying amount
of the retained investment at the date when control is lost and its fair value is recognised in profit or loss.
Subsequently, the refained interest is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or as an available-for-
sale financial asset depending on the level of influence retained.

Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses in the Company’s balance
sheet. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the difference between disposal proceeds and the carrying
amounts of the investments are recognised in profit or loss.

Currency translation

@

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

The individual financial statements of each entity are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“functional currency”). The Company’s functional currency is
Singapore dollars.The consolidated financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi ("RMB”) which
is the Group'’s and the Company’s presentation currency as operations denominated in Chinese Renminbi
represented a significant porfion of the business.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in a currency other than the functional currency (“foreign currency”) are measured in the
respective functional currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries and are recorded on initial recognition
in the functional currencies at exchange rates approximating those ruling at the fransaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at
balance sheet date. Non-monetary items that are measured in ferms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates as af the datfes of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the seftlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at the
balance sheet date are recognised in profit or loss except for exchange differences arising on monetary
items that form part of the Group’s net investment in foreign operations, which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under currency translation reserve in equity in the consolidated
financial statements. The currency translation reserve is reclassified from equity to profit or loss of the Group
on disposal of the foreign operation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2013
(Amounts in RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Currency translation (Continued)
(iii) Translation of the Group’s financial statements

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Chinese Renminbi af the rate of exchange
ruling af the balance sheet date and their profit or loss are franslated at the exchange rates prevailing at
the date of the fransactions. The exchange differences arising on the translation are recognised in other
comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal without loss of control of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of the exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
conftrolling inferest and are not recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost.The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment initially recognised includes its purchase price and any cost that is directly aftributable to bringing
the asset fo the location and condition necessary for it o be capable of operating in the manner infended by
management. Cost also includes borrowing costs (see the accounting policy for borrowing costs as set out in this
Note). The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment including subsequent expenditure is recognised as
an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment is
required fo be replaced in intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific lives and
depreciation, respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying
amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
mainfenance expenses are recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

After initial recognition, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment loss.

Construction in progress includes all cost of construction and other direct costs. Cost includes professional fees and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Construction
in progress is reclassified fo the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when complete and ready
fo use.

Construction in progress is not depreciated. All other items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated using
the straight-line method to write-off the cost of the assets less estimated residual value over their estimated useful

lives as follows: -

Estimated residual value

Useful lives (Years) as a percentage of cost (%)
Leasehold buildings 10 to 30 510 10%
Plant and machinery 10to 20 510 10%
Motor vehicles 10 510 10%
Office equipment 5 510 10%
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2013
(Amounts in RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The residual value, estimated useful life and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at
each date of balance sheet to ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with
the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property, plant and equipment. Fully depreciated assets
are refained in the financial statements until they are no longer in use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss on retirement or disposal is determined as the difference
between any sales proceeds and the carrying amounts of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss within *Other
expenses, net”.

Land use rights

Land use rights are initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, land use rights are measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. The land use rights are amortised on a straight-
line basis over the lease ferm of 50 years.

Biological assets

Biological assets are the growing crops of the Group on the cultivation bases and bamboo shoots and frees in a
bamboo plantation base.

Vegetables are measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Growing crops on our cultivation bases that are to be harvested within the next 3 fo 6 months (i.e. current assets)
are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Cost of the growing crops comprise purchase cost
of raw materials accounted for on a weighted average basis, direct labour and an aftributable proportion of
cultivation overheads based on the volume of crops harvested.

Bamboo shoots and frees under cultivation in the bamboo plantation base (i.e. non-current assets) are measured
at fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs on initial recognition and at each balance sheet date.The fair value
of biological assets is determined based on the market price with reference to the species, growing condition, cost
incurred and expected yield of the crops.

The gain or loss arising on initial recognition of bamboo shoots and trees and fair value less estimated point of sale
and from a change in fair value less estimated point of sale costs of bamboo shoots and frees are included in the
profit or loss for the period it arises.

Land improvement costs
Land improvement costs pertain to improvement to agricultural land used by the Group. It is stated at cost less any

accumulated impairment losses and is amortised on straight-line basis over 5 years over which the Group derives
benefits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Operating lease prepayments

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased item are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indicatfion that an asset may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, or when an annual impairment assessment for an asset is required, the Group makes an
estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell and
its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely dependent on those from other assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down fo its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset are discounted
fo their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are
taken info account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly fraded subsidiaries or
other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared
separately for each of the Group's cash-generating units o which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecasts calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth years.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss in those expense categories consistent with the function of
the impaired asset, except for assets that are previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other
comprehensive income. In this case, the impairment is also recognised in other comprehensive income up to the
amount of any previous revaluation.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made af each reporting date as to whether there is any indication
that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the Group estimates the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to defermine the recoverable amount of
an asset since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to ifs recoverable amount. This increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised previously. Such reversal is recognised
in the profit and loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial assets

O}

(i)

(iii)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised on the balance sheet when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Group determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition. Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not af fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable fransaction costs.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the nature of the assets and the purpose for which the assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and for held-to-maturity
investments, re-evaluates this designation at every balance sheet date. As at the balance sheet date, the
Group has no financial assets in the category of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-
maturity investments and available-for-sale financial assets.

Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are presented as current assets, except for those expected fo be realised
later than 12 months after the balance sheet date which are classified as non-current assets. Loans and
receivables comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, including amounts due from
related parties.

Subsequent fo initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method, less impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights fo receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised or derecognised on the frade
date, i.e. the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of the assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired and recognised the impairment loss when such evidence exists.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or nof, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account.The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

When the asset becomes uncollectible, the carrying amount of impaired financial assets is reduced directly or if
an amount was charged to the allowance account, the amounts charged to the allowance account are written
off against the carrying value of the financial asset.

To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets has been incurred,
the Group considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor
and default or significant delay in payments.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively fo an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal
date.The amount of reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stafed at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Raw materials comprise purchase costs
accounted for on a weighted average basis. Work-in-progress and finished goods comprise cost of direct materials,
direct labour and an afttributable proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity.
These costs are assigned on a weighted average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to be incurred for selling and distribution.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period
in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any allowance for write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in “other expenses” in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any allowance for write-down of inventories, arising from
an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

O}

(i)

(iii)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial insfrument.The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition. Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, plus, in the case of financial liabilities not
at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable fransaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when liabilities are derecognised, and through the amortisation process.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancel